Howard University

Digital Howard @ Howard University

Howard University Catalogs

Howard University Archives

1873

1873-74: Catalog of the Officers and Students of Howard University

Follow this and additional works at: https://dh.howard.edu/hucatalogs

Recommended Citation

"1873-74: Catalog of the Officers and Students of Howard University" (1873). *Howard University Catalogs*. 32.

https://dh.howard.edu/hucatalogs/32

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the Howard University Archives at Digital Howard @ Howard University. It has been accepted for inclusion in Howard University Catalogs by an authorized administrator of Digital Howard @ Howard University. For more information, please contact digitalservices@howard.edu.

CATALOGUE OF THE OFFICERS AND STUDENTS OF HOWARD UNIVERSITY

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

1873-74

Cover designed by:



CATALOGUE

GF

THE OFFICERS AND STUDENTS

OF

HOWARD UNIVERSITY,

FOR

THE ACADEMICAL YEAR

1873-4.

WASHINGTON, D. C. O. H. RRED, PRINTER, 401 SEVENTH ST.

CONTENTS.

| P | AGE. |
|--|------------|
| Board of Trustees | 3 |
| Members of the Honorary Board | 4 |
| Visiting and Examining Committee | 4 |
| Officers of Instruction and Government | 5 |
| Normal Department | 7 |
| Preparatory Department | 23 |
| Collegiate Department | 31 |
| Theologicial Department | 40 |
| Law Department. | |
| Medical Department | |
| Military Department | 65 |
| Commercial Department | 68 |
| Musical Department | |
| General Information | |
| General Summary of Students | |
| Calendar, 1872-23 | ~ 0 |



.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES.

| Maj. Gen. O. O. HOWARD, LL.D., | Washington, D. C. |
|--------------------------------|---------------------|
| Hon. SAMUEL C. POMEROY, LL.D., | , Atchison, Kansas. |
| GEN. CHARLES H. HOWARD, | Chicago, Illinois. |
| WILLIAM F. BASCOM, A.M., | Washington, D. C. |
| GEN. GEORGE W. BALLOCH, | Washington, D. C. |
| REV. JOHN W. ALVORD, | Washington, D. C. |
| WILLIAM J. WILSON, | Washington, D. C. |
| REV. JOHN M. BROWN, D.D., | Washington, D. C. |
| REV. GEORGE WIIIPPLE, | New York City. |
| Hon. FRED'K DOUGLASS, LL.D., | Washington, D. C. |
| Hon. SILAS HODGES, A.M., | Washington, D. C. |
| FRANCIS H. SMITH, | Washington, D. C. |
| GEORGE E. BAKER, | Washington, D. C. |
| ZALMON RICHARDS, | Washington, D. C. |
| THOMAS L. TULLOCK, | Washington, D. C. |
| REV. SAMPSON TALBOT, | Washington, D. C. |
| Hon. EDWARD P. SMITH, | Washington, D. C. |
| Hon. WILLIAM A. RICHARDSON, | Washington, D. C. |
| REV. S. S. MITCHELL, | Washington, D. C. |
| OTIS F. PRESBREY, M.D., | Washington, D. C. |

Members of the Honorary Board.

U.S. GRANT, PRESIDENT OF U.S., Washington, D. C. Willimantie, Conn. E. M. CUSHMAN, Chicago, Illinois. TUTHILL KING, Peterboro', N. Y. HON. GERRIT SMITH. Hartford, Coun. Hon. DAVID CLARK, Hon. JOHN A. BINGHAM. Ohio. Philadelphia, Pa. WILLIAM WHIPPER, Washington, D. C. JAMES B. JOHNSON. Baltimore, Md. Hon. HUGH L. BOND, Hon. BURTON C. COOK, Illinois. Washington, D. C. MOSES KELLY, REV. J. EAMES RANKIN, D.D., Washington, D. C. REV. DANFORTH B. NICHOLS, Washington, D. C.

Executive Committee.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., Acting President.
GEN. GEORGE W. BALLOCH.
WILLIAM J. WILSON
HON. EDWARD P. SMITH.
FRANCIS H. SMITH.

Secretary and Treasurer.

JAMES B. JOHNSON.

FACULTY.

MAJOR GENERAL OLIVER O. HOWARD, LL.D., PRESIDENT.

Resignation presented, and indefinite leave of absence granted.)

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D.,

VICE-PRESIDENT AND ACTING PRESIDENT, Professor of Law and Dean of Law Faculty.

REV. ELIPHALET WHITTLESEY, A.M.,

PROFESSOR OF RHETORIC AND ENGLISH LITERATURE AND LECTURER ON EVIDENCES OF CHRISTIANITY,

(Resigned.)

HON. ALBERT G. RIDDLE,
PROFESSOR OF LAW.

HENRY D. BEAM, LL.B., INSTRUCTOR IN LAW.

GIDEON S. PALMER, A.M., M.D.,

PROFESSOR OF PHYSIOLOGY AND HYGIENE AND CLINICAL LECTURER ON DISEASES OF THE NERVOUS SYSTEM.

CHARLES B. PURVIS, A.M., M.D.,

PROFFSSOR OF OBSTETEICS AND DESEASES OF WOMEN AND CLINICAL MIDWIFERY.

ALEXANDER AUGUSTA, A.M., M.D.,

PROFESSOR OF DESCRIPTIVE MICROSCOPIAL AND SURGICAL ANATOMY.

JOSEPH A. SLADEN, M.D., DEMONSTRATOR OF ANATOMY.

REV. JOHN B. REEVE, D.D., PROFESSOR OF BIBLICAL THEOLOGY.

CAPTAIN MELVILLE C. WILKINSON, U. S. A., MILITARY INSTRUCTOR AND COMMANDANT OF CADETS.

CYRUS S. RICHARDS, LL.D.,

PRINCIPAL OF PREPARATORY DEPARTMENT AND INSTRUCTOR IN LATIN AND GREEK.

REV. LORENZO WESCOTT, A.M.,

PROFESSOR OF MATHEMATICS AND INSTRUCTOR IN SACRED AND ECCLESIASTICAL HISTORY.

REV. J. EAMES RANKIN, D.D., LECTURER ON HOMILETICS, (Resigned.)

REV. JOHN G. BUTLER, D.D., LECTURER ON PASTORAL THEOLOGY.

GEORGE W. MITCHELL, A.M., PROFESSOR OF LATIN AND INSTRUCTOR IN POLITICAL ECONOMY.

PROFESSOR OF GREEK.

JAMES M. GREGORY, A.B.,

TUTOR IN LATIN AND MATHEMATICS—PREPARATORY DEPARTMENT.

JOHN G. B. BAXTER, M.D.,
PROFESSOR OF THE PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICE OF MEDICINE.

DANIEL S. LAMB, M.D.,
PROFESSOR OF MATERIA MEDICA AND MEDICAL JURISPRUDENCE.

NIEL F. GRAHAM, M.D.,
PROFESSOR OF THE PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICE OF SURGERY.

WILLIAM SEAMAN, A.M., LECTURER ON BOTANY AND MICROSCOPY.

MARCUS A. WEED,
PRINCIPAL OF NORMAL DEPARTMENT,
(Resigned.)

THOMAS ROBINSON, PRINCIPAL OF NORMAL DEPARTMENT.

FRANK W. CLARKE, S.B.,
ACTING UNIVERSITY PROFESSOR OF CHEMISTRY AND PHYSICS.

REV. WILLIAM E. PARSON, A.M.,
ACTING PROFESSOR OF RHETORIC AND LECTURER ON BIBLICAL EXEGESIS.

MR. MICHAELIS E. GOLDBERG, INSTRUCTOR IN HEBREW, GERMAN, FRENCH, AND MUSIC.

MISS KATE C. HAYNES,
MATRON OF THE FEMALE DEPARTMENT.

MISS MARTHA B. BRIGGS, INSTRUCTOR IN NORMAL DEPARTMENT.

MISS ADDIE C. BOWEN, INSTRUCTOR IN MODEL SCHOOL.

A. P. BOGUE, M.D., DEMONSTRATOR OF ANATOMY.

ACADEMICAL BRANCH.

NORMAL DEPARTMENT.

FACULTY.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDENT. THOMAS ROBINSON.
MISS MARTHA B. BRIGGS.
MISS ADDIE C. BOWEN.
ROBERT P. BROOKS, A.B.

STUDENTS.

Senior Class.

| NAMES. | RESIDENCES. |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|
| Braye, George W., | Norfolk, Va. |
| Gilchrist, David D., | Ashley, Delaware Co., O. |
| Hollensworth, Samuel J., | Owego, N. Y. |
| Jordan, Wiley H., | Washington, D. C. |
| Matthews, George M., | Baltimore, Md. |
| Smith, George W., | Washington, D. C. |
| Hobson, Mary F., | Richmond, Va. |
| Kinckle, Alice W., | Lynchburg, Va. |
| Roeser, Thisnelda C., | Washington, D. C. |
| Junior | Class. |
| Camper, Jerry H., | Tarboro, N. C. |
| Crusor, Collins, | Georgetown, D. C. |
| Daney, John C., | Tarboro, N. C. |

Washington, D. C.

Hatton, Andrew,

RESIDENCES.

*Hunt, Robert B., Mali, Jeremiah M., Marquess, John W. O., Sing, Leong, Vance, James M.,

Baldwin, Virginia M.,
Burton, Louisa,
Chew, Emma J.,
Fry, Helena C.,
Hale, Sarah J.,
*McLemore, Virginia,
Nugent, Paralee E.,
Over, Anna R.,
Rumbley, Georgiana A.,
Saunders, Anna V.,
Shaw, Victoria D.,
Smallwood, Annie L.,
Talbot, Sarah A.,

Warrick, Mary W.,

Anne Arundel Co., Md. Unkomasi, Africa. Lower Marlboro', Md. Canton, China. New Orleans, La.

Oxford, Pa.
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Reading, Pa.
Montgomery, Ala.
Montgomery, Ala.
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Philadelphia, Pa.
Washington, D. C.
New York City.
Lynchburg, Va.

Model School.

Class A.

Bemo, Alson D.,
Bolden, Charles,
Custis, Marshall M.,
Foston, James E.,
Gaines, Richard L.,
Gaskins, Henry A.,
Lee, Oscar A.,
Moten, William,
Robertson, Charles,
Sewell, Lemuel,
Smith, Moses,
Thompson, Carey,
White, George H.,

Lee, Mary E., Page, Eleanora, Marshaltown, Indian Territory.
Washington, D. C.
Arlington, Va.
Toronto, Canada.
Independence, Mo. ·
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Olympia, Washington Territory.
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Augusta, Ga.
Wilmington, N. C.

Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C.

*Deceased.

RESIDENCES.

Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C.

Concord, N. C.

Class B.

Alvord, John, Braxton, Festus, Coleman, Warren, Davis, Isaiah, Hogans, Peter, Jones, William, Jackson, Samuel, Lawson, Jesse, Nichols, Jesse, Perrault, Paul, Richardson, Attrell, Richardson, Dempsey, Robinson, James, Sewall, George, Turner, John P., Wamack, George W., Washington, Henry, Washington, William, West, Samuel, Williams, Alfred, Whiting, J. C.,

Bowley, Sarah, Brooks, Nina, Brown, Mary L., Cox, Bettie G., Cook, Lucinda, Langston, Nettie D., Smith, Ida, Smith, Kate D., Smith, Mary E., Smoot, Sarah E.,

Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. New Orleans, La. Plainfield, N. J. Washington, D. C. New Orleans, La. Wilmington, N. C. Washington, D. C. Anne Arundel Co., Md. Washington, D. C. Savannah, Ga. Huntsville, Ala. Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Mobile, Ala.

Providence, R. I. Baltimore, Md. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Detroit, Mich. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C.

Westchester, Chester Co., Pa. Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Class C.

Bullard, Lee T., Brooks, Harry, Bundy, James, Edwards, Andrew, Lane, Andrew J., Stevens, Horace, Scott, Daniel,

Charleston, West Va. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Kilmarnock, Lancaster, Co., Va. Washington, D. C. Brooksville, Miss. Washington, D. C.

| 10 HOWARD UNIVERSITY. | | NIVERSITY. |
|-----------------------|------------|---------------------|
| NAMES. | | RESIDENCES. |
| Rawls, George, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Kelly, James, | | · Washington, D. C. |
| Alexander, Rebecca, | | Georgetown, D. C. |
| Brown, Hester, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Farnsworth, Mary A., | | Washington, D. C. |
| Gray, Ada S., | | Arlington, Va. |
| Grice, Josephine, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Hall, Anna, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Jacobs, Louisa, | | Norfolk, Va. |
| Jackson, Malinda, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Johnson, Mary F., | | Lexington Va. |
| Strathers, Mary E., | | Washington, D. C. |
| Une | classified | l Scholars. |
| Barker, John, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Brooks, Isaiah, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Carter, John, | | Washington, D. C. |
| Cosey Moses | | Washington D.C. |

Cosey, Moses, Washington, D. C. Cash, Allen B., Atlanta, Ga. Colburn, Lewis, Baltimore, Md. Crawford, William G. Washington, D. C. Delany, Charles, Washington, D. C. *Goodrich, Lewis, Washington, D. C. Gray, Robert, Washington, D. C. Holmes, Benjamin, Washington, D. C. Hunter, Napoleon, Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Ingraham, Thomas, Washington, D. C. Jackson, Richard, Washington, D. C. Jones, Thomas, Washington, D. C. Kempt, Richard, Washington, D. C. Lincoln, Samuel, Washington, D. C. Lee, Abram, Savannah, Ga. Lewis, William, Washington, D. C. Miles, Henry, McRay, Lafayette, Monticello, Fla. Washington, D. C. Naucks, Oscar, Naucks, George, Washington, D. C. Saunders, Louis, Spencerport, N. Y. Strathers, Abraham, Washington, D. C. Thornton, George, Washington, D. C. Barker, Eugenie, Washington, D. C.

RESIDENCES

Bruce, Ellen, Bolden, Sallie, Colman, Katie, Chew, Rebecca. Gray, Charlotte, Lee, Maud, Lee, Laura. Lee, Pheddie, Lewis, Ann E., McDanniel, Truelove. McDaniel, Sarah C., Randolph, Ella, *Tappan, Minnie, Wall, Sallie, Warren, Mahala, Wenrick, Emma, Williams, Martha A.,

*Deceased.

Washington, D. C. Alexandria, Va. Washington, D. C. Laurenceville, S. C. Lynchburg, Va. Lynchburg, Va. Alexandria, Va. Titusville, Penn. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Reading, Pa.

Washington, D. C.

PREPARATORY DEPARTMENT.

FACULTY.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDENT. CYRUS S. RICHARDS, LL.D. JAMES M. GREGORY, A. B.

STUDENTS.

Graduates June 16, 1873.

NAMES.

RESIDENCES.

Alexander, Nathan L., Davis, Wellington A., Foster, Sylvester R., Hayne, Job B., Jordan, Wilev, Lane, John H., Lane, Wiley Jr., Middleton, William Jr., Moore, Charles H., Morris, Phillip F., Posey, Lawrence O., Scott, Cornelius C., Snowden, Thomas B., Tancil, Richard F., Taylor, John E., Thompson, Jacob L., Turner, Rooks, Watkins, L. Peyton M., Montgomery, Ala. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Marion, S. C. Washington, D. C. Elizabeth City, N. C. Elizabeth City, N. C. Washington, D. C. Raleigh, N. C. Heatheville, Va. Aiken, S. C. Charleston, S. C. Washington, D. C. Alexandria, Va. Wilmington, N. C. New Rochelle, N. Y. Elizabeth City, N. C. Nashville, Tenn.

Graduates 18.

RESIDENCES.

Undergraduates.

SENIOR CLASS.

Bagnall, Robert, Jr., Camp, James W. Jr., Eaton, John W., Jones, Oliver C., Keys, Charles P., Parkinson, William D., Pope, James W.,

Smith, Reuben S.,

Norfolk, Va.
Norfolk, Va.
Camden, Del.
Doaksville, Ind. Ter.
Charleston, W. Va.
Washington, D. C.
Boston, Mass.
Marianna, Fla.

Seniors 8.

MIDDLE CLASS.

Addison, Thomas W., *Beverly, Esau A., Brodie, Albert K., Brown, John M. Jr., Brown, William L., *Bryan, James W., Combs, Charles H., Contee, George S., Davis, Charles A., Grice, Julius L., Howard, James H., Kevs, Robert, Laws, Robert S., Minor, Henry, Mitchell, Rhoden, Reagan, Charles E., Russell, Eugene R., Rutherford, Gemal B., Sears, William G., Taylor, Guy W., Winfield, Robert,

Cary, Sarah E.,

Esters, Susan A.,

Gladman, Ottawa A.,

Robertson, Grace L.,

Smith, Emma V.,

Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Raleigh, N. C. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Beaufort, S. C. Baltimore, Md. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Brookville, Md. Charleston, W. Va. Arlington, Va. Washington, D. C. Windsor, N. C. Kent Co., Md. Houma, La. Macon, Ga. Cincinnati, O. Gloucester Point, Va. Washington, D. C.

Detroit, Mich.
St. Louis, Mo.
Lynchburg, Va.
Indian Territory.
Potomac City, D. C.

Middle Class 26.

* Deceased.

RESIDENCES.

JUNIOR CLASS

Affoo, Fung, Allen, William, Alvord, Samuel P., Archer, William L. Brent, Peyton D., Brown, Henry W., Carter, Thomas H., Chase, William C., Crawford, Cornelius, Eaton, Paul. Edwards, William H., Frisby, Joseph R., Hatton, Isaiah. Henderson, William H., Howard, James W., Jackson, James A., Jenkins, James E., Johnson, Logan, Lewis, Walter. Mason, Charles W., Moore, William H., Newman, Gilbert R. M., Perkins, William J., Reeves, Washington C., Roeser, Hugo, Rockwell, Julius E., Saunders, James S., Smith, Howard L., Thompson, Robert B., Walden, Islay W., Wall, Stephen, White, William H., Williams, Emery W.,

Balloch, Abbie H., Hagan, Fannie E., McCabe, Arabella, Canton, China.

Alexandria, Va. Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Geneva, N. Y.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Lynchburg, Va.

Washington, D. C.

Brookville, Md.

Philadelphia, Pa.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

New York City, N. Y.

Warrenton, Va.

Bridgeport, Ct.

Alexandria, Va.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C.

New Orleans, La.

Chestertown, Md.

Arlington, Va.

Washington, D. C.

Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C.

Yorkville, S. C.

Washington, D. C.

rrashington, 17. C.

Washington, D. C. Williamsport, Penn.

Washington, D. C.

Junior Class 36,

COLLEGIATE DEPARTMENT.

FACULTY.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDET.
REV. ELIPHALET WHITTLESEY.
REV. LORENZO WESTCOTT.
GEORGE W. MITCHELL, A. M.
FRANK W. CLARKE, S. B.
REV. WILLIAM E. PARSON.

STUDENTS.

Graduates of June 1873.

NAMES.

RESIDENCES,

Otey, Charles Nelson, Simmons, William J.,

Raleigh, N. C.
Bordentown, N. J.
Graduates 2.

Orialitates 2.

Undergraduates.

SENIOR CLASS.

Mitchell, Robert Lewellyn, Nichols, Matilda Adams, Alexandria, Va. Washington, D. C.

JUNIOR CLASS.

Browne, Hugh M., Leftwich, Rice Alpheus, Morris, Joseph White, Shadd, Furman Jeremiah Stewart, Thomas McCants, Washington, D. C. Newark, N. J. Charleston, S. C. Washington, D. C. Charleston, S. C.

SOPHOMORE CLASS.

Browne, William K., Cook, Albert,

Washington, D. C. Detroit, Mich.

RESIDENCES.

Dart. William M.,
Hunt, James E.,
Meriwether, James H.,
Mishow, Paul J.,
Morris, John M.,
Moss, Richard T.,
Otey, Henry, R.,
Shippen, John M.,
Smith, Simon P.,
Taylor, George P.,
Townsend, Alonzo G.,

Charleston, S. C.
Crownsville, Md.
Louisville, Ky.
Charleston, S. C.
Charleston, S. C.
Washington, D. C.
Raleigh, N. C.
Caroline Co., Va.
Columbia, S. C.
Washington, D. C.
Charleston, S. C.

Washington, D. C.

Montgomery, Ala.

Dyson, Laura F.,

FRESHMAN CLASS.

Alexander, Nathan H.,
Davis, Wellington,
Foster, Sylvester R.,
Lane, Wiley Jr.,
Lane, John H.,
Middleton, William,
Posey, Lawrence O.,
Scott, Cornelius C..
Snowden, Thomas B.,
Tancil, Richard F.,
Taylor, John E.,
Thompson, Jacob L.,
Turner, Rooks,
Watkins, L. Payton M.,

Washington, D. C.
Richmond, Va.
Elizabeth City, N. C.
Elizabeth City, N. C.
Washington, D. C.
Aiken, S. C.
Charleston, S. C.
Washington, D. C.
Alexandria, Va.
Wilmington, N. C.
New Rochelle, N. Y.
Elizabeth City, N. C.
Nashville, Tenn.

Total 35.

MILITARY DEPARTMENT.

OFFICERS.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D. ACTING PRESIDENT.

CAPTAIN M. C. WILKINSON, U. S. A., COMMANDANT.

CADETS.

NAMES.

RANKS

Furman J. Shadd. Joseph W. Morris, Henry R. Otev, Hugh M. Browne, Samuel J. Hollensworth. John W. Eaton, Wiley Lane, jr., John H. Lane, Jacob L. Thompson,

A. Douglass Bemo. Albert K. Brodie. Simon P. Smith, George M. Matthews, Rooks Turner. Charles P. Keys, Louis G. Colburn, Nathaniel H. Alexander,

James W. Camp,

William Allen,

Cadet Captain. Cadet First Lieutenant. Cadet Second Lieutenant. Cadet First Lieutenant and Adjutant. Cadet First Sergeant. Cadet Second Sergeant. Cadet Third Sergeant. Cadet Fourth Sergeant. Cadet Fifth Sergeant.

Cadet First Corporal. Cadet Second Corporal. Cadet Third Corporal. Cadet Fourth Corporal. Cadet Fifth Corporal. Cadet Sixth Corporal. Cadet Seventh Corporal. Cadet Eighth Corporal.

Cadet Quarter Master Sergeant.

Cadet Corporal and Armorer.

MUSICAL DEPARTMENT.

FACULTY.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDENT.

MICHAELIS E. GOLDBERG, INSTRUCTOR.

STUDENTS.

NAMES.

RESIDENCES.

Esters, Susan A., Gladman, Ottowa A., Gray, Charlotte, Hagan, Fannie E., Hale, Sarah J., Kinckle, Alice W., Nichols, Matilda A., Page, Eleanora, Randolph, Ella, Rumbley, Georgiana A., Shaw, Victoria, Strather, Mary A., *Tappan, Minnie, Wall, S. Lillie, Wall, Isabella I., Warrick, Mary W., Weed, Leah V.,

St. Louis, Mo. Lynchburg, Va. Washington, D. C. Williamsport, Pa. Montgomery, Ala. Lynchburg, Va. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Alexandria, Va. Philadelphia, Pa. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Titusville, Pa. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Petersburg, Va. Washington, D. C.

^{*} Deceased.

PROFESSIONAL BRANCH.

MEDICAL DEPARTMENT.

FACULTY.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDENT. GIDEON S. PALMER, M.D. CHARLES B. PURVIS, M.D. ALEXANDER T. AUGUSTA, M.D. FRANK W. CLARKE, S.B. JOHN B. G. BAXTER, M.D. DANIEL S. LAMB, M.D. NIEL F. GRAHAM, M.D. WILLIAM. SEAMAN, A.M. JOSEPH A. SLADEN, M.D.

STUDENTS.

Graduates for 1873-4.

| NAMES. | RESIDENCES. |
|---------------------|-------------------|
| Frisby, Samuel C., | Philadelphia, Pa. |
| Harmer, Joseph B., | Philadelphia, Pa. |
| Keuhne, Augustus, | Prussia. |
| Riley, Jerome R., | Chicago, Ill. |
| Shadd, Charles S., | Philadelphia, Pa. |
| Clark, Eliezer F., | Barbadoes, W. I. |
| Ford, Edward T., | Barbadoes, W. I. |
| Miller, Thomas S., | Portland, Me. |
| Parsons, Mary A., | Colebrook, N. H. |
| Sumby, Sidney A., | Washington, D. C. |
| Videl Etienne C., | Philadelphia, Pa. |
| Und | ergraduates. |
| Adams, Benjamin B., | Morristown, N. J. |
| Augusta, Wm. E., | Philadelphia, Pa. |
| Bishop, William, | Philadelphia, Pa. |
| Barnes, William S., | Baltimore, Md. |

RESIDENCES.

Cornish, Louis H.,
Gregory, Thomas C.,
Higginbottom, A. J.,
Jackson, Thornton,
King, Nathaniel E.,
Lindsey, Frank T.,
Marshall, John G.,
Priest, James R.,
Shadd, Nellie F.,
Shaw, John W. A.,

Washington, D. C. Cleveland, Ohio. Huntsville, Ala. Washington, D. C. Washington, D. C. Mount Gibad, Ohio. Harrisburg, Pa. Liberia, Africa. Washington, D. C. New York City.

LAW DEPARTMENT.

FACULTY:

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDENT. HON. ALBERT G. RIDDLE. HENRY D. BEAM, LL. B.

STUDENTS.

NAMES.

RESIDENCES.

Graduates-1873.

Butler, John H., Jr.,
*Ford, Gabriel L.,
Hawkesworth, J. Malcolm,
Leary, John S.,
Lee, Joseph E.,
Matthews, William E.,
Morgan, Oliver G.,

Baltimore, Md.
Louisville, Ky.
Philadelphia, Pa.
Fayetteville, N. C.
Philadelphia, Pa.
Baltimore, Md.
Greenville, Miss.

* Deceased.

RESIDENCES

Moss, John A.,
Rock, Joseph C.,
Smith, James H.,
Stevens, Durham W.,
Wagonor, Hary O., Jr.,
Waring, William,
Wheeler, Thomas H.,

Upperville, Va.
Northfield, Vt.
Washington, D. C.
Oberlin, Ohio,
Denver, Col. Ter.
Oberlin, Ohio.
Philadelphia, Pa.

Graduates-1874.

Adams, James O., Boyden, George W., Cromwell, John W., Gage, Augustus N., Locke, Pliny I., Pierce, McGill, Whiting, Ambrose, Philadelphia, Pa. Natick, Mass. Portsmouth, Va. Vineland, N. J. Philadelphia, Pa. Washington, D. C. Portsmouth, Va.

Undergraduates.

SENIOR CLASS.

Blanheim John E.,
Bowman, Alexander W.,
Brooks, Robert P.,
Fry, Henry B.,
Johnson, Calvin D.,
Roane, William C.,
Rouse, John W.,
Ruffin, Robert D.,
Scott, Jeremiah H.,
Scott, William H.,
Settle, Josiah T.,
Washington, Isaiah S..

Alexandria, Va.
Savanah, Ga.
Richmond, Va.
Reading, Pa.
Hampton, Va.
Richmond, Va.
Philadelphia, Pa.
Alexandria, Va.
Philadelphia, Pa.
Virginia.
Hamilton, Ohio.
King George Co., Va.

JUNIOR CLASS.

Atwood, Daniel W.,
Adams, James M.,
Brooks, John R.,
Crusor, Edward F.,
Dease, George W.,
Eisinger, Ludwig,
Fry, Daniel W.,
Goldberg, Michaelis E.,

Zanesville, Ohio.
St. Louis, Mo.
Jackson, Miss.
Georgetown, D. C.
New York City, N. Y.
Washington, D. C.
Philadelphia, Pa.
Washington, D. C

RESIDENCES

Gregory, James M.,
Hall, James R.
Harris, William R.,
Jenkins, A. W.,
Jewell, Thomas B.,
Johnson, George E.,
Jordon, Moses F.,
Lane, George W. B.,
Lewis, Daniel,
Maxwell, John M.,
Otey, Charles N.,
Robinson, R. H.,
Simmons, William J.,
Stanton, E. H.,
Williams, Samuel O.,

Cleveland, Ohio.
Washington, D. C.
Eastport, Me.
Georgetown, D. C.
Oberlin, Ohio.
Chester, Pa.
Norfolk, Va.
Elizabeth, N. C.
Washington, D. C.
Xenia, Ohio.
Raleigh, N. C.
Washington, D. C.
Bordentown, N. J.
Staunton, Va.
Philadelphia, Pa.

THEOLOGICAL DEPARTMENT.

1873-'74.

FACULTY.

JOHN M. LANGSTON, LL.D., ACTING PRESIDENT. REV. JOHN B. REEVE. D.D. REV. ELIPHALET WHITTLESEY, A.M. REV. J. EAMES RANKIN, D.D. REV. JOHN G. BUTLER, D.D. REV. DANFORTH B. NICHOLS, A.M. REV. LORENZO WESTCOTT, A.M. MICHAELIS E. GOLDBERG.

STUDENTS.

NAMES.

RESIDENCES.

Campbell, W. A. L., Carroll, Daniel Albert. Hayne, Joseph Elias, Jackson, Thomas T., Murphy, Willoughby R., Nelson, Simeon James R., Watts, Augustus A.,

Brooker, Benjamin, Lewis, Leonidas A., Lloyd, Benjaman F., Mercer, Washington, Motley, Richard A., Scott, James A., Tucker, Richard A.,

SENIOR CLASS.

Jamaica, W. I. Washington, D. C. Charleston, S. C. Middleburg, Va. Knoxville, Tenn. Mt. Pleasent, D. C. Washington, D. C. Senior Class 7.

MIDDLE CLASS.

Wilmington, N. C. Chester, S. C. Washington, D. C. Lawrence, Kan. New York City. Clarkesville, Va. Norfolk, Va. Middle Class 7.

RESIDENCES.

JUNIOR CLASS.

Ewing, John A.,
Green, William A.,
Jerkins, Michael,
Joell, Lional C.,
Johnson, Mack George,
Taylor, Joseph,
Tolson, William C.,
Robinson, Temple S.,
Wright, Welborn,
Williams, Walter W.,

Nashville, Tenn.
Bermuda, W. I.
Beaufort, N. C.
Bermuda, W. I.
Winnsboro', S. C.
Boston, Mass.
Washington, D. C.
Washington, D. C.
Yorkville, S. C,
Washington, D. C.

Junior Class 10.

UNCLASSIFIED.

Jackson, Andrew, Musgrave, Green, Newman, Isham, Scott, Henry, Wells, Thomas, Washington, D. C. Dudley, N. C. Alexandria, Va. Arlington, Va. Mt. Pleasent, D. C.

RESIDENT PASTORS WHO ATTEND LECTURES, CTC.

Unclassified 5

Jefferson, William B. Brooks, John Waters, William H.

GENERAL SUMMARY.

| Normal Department— Senior class, | 9 25 | |
|---|---------------------------|----|
| Junior class, | 2 0 | |
| Model School— Class A, Class B, Class C, Unclassified, | 14 31 20 43—142 | - |
| PREPARATORY DEPARTMENT- | | |
| Graduates of '73, Senior class, Middle class, Junior class, | 8 26 36 70 | 18 |
| Collegiate Department- | | |
| Graduates of '73, Senior class, Junior class, Sophomore class, Freshman class, | $\frac{2}{5}$ 14 14 35 | 2 |
| Medical Department | | , |
| • Graduates of '73, Graduates of '74, Undergraduates, | 6 14 20 | 5 |
| Law Department— Graduates of '73, Graduates of '74, Senior class, Junior class, | 7 12 25 44 | 14 |
| Theological Department- | | |
| Senior class, Middle class, Junior class, Unclassified, Resident, | 7 7 10 5 3 32 | |
| Total, | 343 | 39 |
| | | |

GENERAL STATEMENT.

The departments of instruction in connection with Howard University are as follows:

- A. ACADEMICAL BRANCH:
- I. NORMAL DEPARTMENT:
- II. PREPARATORY DEPARTMENT.
- III. College Department:
- B. Professional Branch:
- IV. MEDICAL DEPARTMENT;
- V. LAW DEPARTMENT;
- VI. THEOLOGICAL DEPARTMENT.

These departments are separately constituted, but so connected as to secure to each other, as far as possible, all the advantages of the Institution, and to insure, with natural diversity and distinctness, desirable unity.

The same general advantages of chapel and other religious exercises, of the Public Library, Cabinets, Laboratories, and General Lectures are extended to all, with all the special advantages of departmental drill and in struction.

NORMAL DEPARTMENT.

ADMISSION.

All applicants must present satisfactory evidence of good moral character. Students are admitted at any time, if prepared to enter regular classes. The school year begins with the Fall Term, at which time the classifica

tion commences.

Candidates for admission to the Model School must be at least twelve years of age, and pass satisfactory examinations in Arithmetic (through long division), Reading, Spelling (common words of two syllables), and Elements of Geography.

This is intended to be a school of "practice" and of "observation." and is so arranged that those who complete its course of instruction will be

prepared to enter either the Normal or Preparatory Department.

In order that this school may be truly a ' Model," constant attendance, prompt obedience, and good scholarship are required of every pupil.

For admission to the first year of the regular Normal Course candidates must be fourteen years of age, and sustain examinations in Reading, Writing, Arithmetic (mental and written), through simple interest, English Grammar (including spelling), and Geography with map drawing.

This course of instruction is designed for students who have the work of teaching in view, but it is equally adapted to those who seek a good Eng-

lish education.

Advanced pupils will have the opportunity of teaching classes in the Model School under the direction of the Principal.

DIPLOMAS.

Diplomas certifying qualification to teach will be awarded to all students regularly completing the above course.

The Normal Department is mainly supported by what is known as the

" Miner Fund."

COURSE OF STUDY.

MODEL SCHOOL

Reading, Spelling, Penmanship, Geography, Grammar, and United States History, arranged according to the yearly attainments of the A, B, and C classes.

NORMAL COURSE.

JUNIOR YEAR.

- First (Eaton's Arithmetic; Harvey's Grammar; Lynd's Etymology; term. (Geography, with map drawing; Reading and Spelling.
- Second (Arithmetic continued; Grammar, analysis and parsing; Loomis's term. Elements of Algebra; Payson, Dunton & Scribner's Penmanship.
- Third | Algebra continued; Bryant and Stratton's Book-keeping; Natural term. | History; Linear Drawing.

MIDDLE YEAR.

- First & Loomis's Treatise on Algebra; Steele's Natural Philosophy; Maury's term. Cor Guyot's Physical Geography; Hillard's Sixth Reader.
- Second | Eaton's High School Arithmetic; Huxley & Youman's or Cutter's term. | Physiology; Steele's Chemistry.
- Third { Loomis's Geometry; Rescoe's Chemistry; Agassiz & Gould's term. { Principles of Zoology.

SENIOR YEAR.

- First { Geometry continued; Smith & Tuckerman's English Literature; term. { Haven's Science of the Mind.
- Second { Loomis's Elements of Astronomy; Haven's Moral Science; Anderterm. { son's Universal History.
- Third { Gray's Botany; Dana's Geology; Reviews of Common English term. { Branches; School Laws.

COLLATERAL EXERCISES.

Bible lessons, rhetorical exercises, original declamations and discussions, lectures on teaching and on topics of study in connection with the text books, teaching in the *Model School*.

PREPARATORY DEPARTMENT.

ADMISSION.

Candidates for admission to this department should be able to pass a satisfactory examination in reading, writing, arithmetic—mental and written, English grammar, history of the United States, and modern geography.

Certificates of character and honorable dismission from other schools or

departments are required.

The course of study is designed to be sufficiently thorough and extensive to fit the student for admission to any college course.

Examination for admission will take place on the first day of each term. Letters of inquiry with respect to this department should be addressed to the Principal.

COURSE OF STUDY.

JUNIOR YEAR.

First Harkness' Arnold's First Latin Book; Arithmetic (written and term. mental) reviewed; Ancient Geography; Reading and Spelling.

Second (First Latin Book continued, Loomis' Elementary Algebra, Worterm. Cester's Outlines of History.

Third { Hanson's Casar ; Harkness' Prose Composition : Algebra continued term. } History—outlines, continued.

MIDDLE YEAR.

First { Casar continued; Prose Composition and Richard's Latin Tables; term. { Crosby's Greek Lessons and Grammar; Algebra continued.

Second Hanson's Sallust—Cataline, Prose Composition and Latin Tables continued; Greek Lessons and Grammar continued; Linear Drawing and Penmanship.

Third { Sallust completed; and Hanson's Cicero begun; Xenophon's Anaterm. { basis; Greek and Latin Prose Composition; Loomis' Geometry.

SENIOR YEAR.

 $\frac{F_{trst}}{term.} \left\{ \begin{aligned} &\text{Cicero completed ; and Chase's Virgil begun ; Anabasis continued ;} \\ &\text{Prose Compositions continued ; Mythology and Greeian and Roman} \\ &\text{Antiquities.} \end{aligned} \right.$

Second Virgil continued; English Poetry, with translations into English term. Variety Anabasis completed; and Boise's Homer begun; Prose Compositions continued.

Third { Virgil finished; Homer finished; Greek and Latin reviewed; term. { Algebra and Geometry reviewed.

COLLATERAL EXERCISES.

Bible lessons; exercises in general grammar and grammatical analysis; weekly rhetorical and elocutionary exercises; original declamations and discussions in the senior year; a course of reading to guide the student to an acquaintance with the following subjects, viz.; Ancient geography, mythology, Grecian and Roman antiquities, ancient and modern history, physical science, etc.; lectures on classical and scientific subjects and general culture weekly, on Friday afternoon.

COLLEGE DEPARTMENT.

ADMISSION.

Candidates for admission to the Freshman Class are examined in the following, or equivalent studies: Latin—Grammar and Prose Composition, Harkness'; Casar, two books; Cicero, four orations; Virgil, four books of the Æncid; Sallust—Catiline. Greek Grammar, Hadley's or Grosby's; Greek Lessons, Crosby's; Xenophon, first two books of the Anabasis; Homer, first two books of the Hiad; Prose Composition, Arnold's first eighteen sections. Other Branches—Higher Arithmetic; Algebra, to Quadratic Equations; History, of Greece and Rome; Geography. Ancient and Modern; English Grammar. Candidates for an advanced standing are examined in the preparatory branches and in those pursued by the class they propose to enter. All who apply for admission must furnish certificates of good character, and, if from another college, of their regular dismission.

COURSE OF STUDY.

FRESHMAN YEAR.

First Latin, Livy, Chase's; Prose Composition, Arnold's; Latin, Livy, Chase's; Prose Composition, Harkness's; Mathematics, Algebra, Loomis's; English, Rhetoric, parts first and second, Quackenbos's.

Greek, Xenophon's Memorabilia, Robbins's; Prose Composition, Second Arnold's; Latin, Livy; Horace's Odes, Chase's; Prose Comterm. position, Harkness's; Mathematics, Algebra and Geometry; English, Rhetoric, part third.

 $\frac{Tirhd}{term.} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \text{Greek, Xenophon's Memorabilia; Prose Composition, Arnold's;} \\ \text{Latin, Horace's Odes and Satires, Chase's; Mathematics, Geometry; English, Rhetoric, parts fourth and fifth.} \end{array} \right.$

SOPHOMORE YEAR.

First term. { Greek, Prometheus of Æschylus, Woolsey's; Latin, Horace's Satires and Epistles, Chase's; Mathematics, Geometry and Conic Sections, Loomis's; English Rhetoric, Whately's.

Second Greek, Antigone of Sophocles, Woolsey's; Latin, Cicero De term. Surveying, Loomis's.

Third Greek, Antigone; Latin, Tacitus, Germania and Agricola Tyler's; Mathematics, Spherical Trigonometry and Navigation, term. Loomis's; Physical Geography, Maury's; English, Science of Language, Whitney's.

JUNIOR YEAR.

First Geometry; Natural Philosophy, Balfour Stewart's; Anatomy term. and Physiology, Lectures; English History of Literature; Emil Otto's Grammar and Exercises.

Second | Latin Satires of Juvenal; Natural Philosophy; English Literaterm. | ture; French, Worman's Echode de Paris.

Third Evidences of Christianity, Hopkins's; Botany, Gray's; Astronomy, Loomis's; Elements of Logic, Coppee's; French, Telemaque and Howard's French Composition.

SENIOR YEAR.

First term. { Mental Science, Human Intellect, Porter's; Chemistry, Roscoe's; Political Economy, Smith's; Geyman, Peyser's Grammar and Exercises, (optional.)

| Mental Science, Human Intellect; Moral Science, Hopkins's; | Second | International Law, Woolsey's; Chemistry—Lectures, Roscoe's; | term. | Mineralogy, Dana's; English, British and American Poets; German, Worman's Berliner Echo, (optional).

Third | Political Philosophy; International Law; Constitution of the term. | United States; Geology, Natural History.

OTHER EXERCISES.

Lessons in English Bible, compositions, declamations, and extemporaneous discussions, weekly, and public original declamations once a year throughout the course.

DEGREES.

On recommendation of the Faculty, the usual degrees are conferred on graduates.

MUSICAL DEPARTMENT.

COURSE OF STUDY.

The course of study includes thorough instruction in vocal and instrumental music, in connection with the elements of musical composition, harmony, and thorough-bass. course on the piano comprehends three years, on the organ and in vocal music two, and on the harmonium one. the study of music the following books are used: Piano. first and second year, Richardson's new method, Diabelli's twenty-eight melodious exercises, Sonatinas and Sonatas, and selections of distinguished authors; third year. Czerui's and Cramer's Etudes, Mozart's and van Beethoven's Sonatas, and selections of the best composers; organ, Schneider's practical organ school, and selections; harmonium, Clarke's new method for Reed organ, and companion to the same; youal music, Cook's vocal method, and selections; theory of music, Burrowes' thorough bass primer, and companion to the same; Johnson's harmony and Wohlfahrt's guide to musical composition. Study and practice hours are strictly observed. All necessary instruments are furnished

TERMS:

| One quarter, 24 lessons, on the pianoforte, | 812. |
|--|------|
| One quarter, 24 lessons, for the cultivation of the voice, | 815. |
| One quarter, 24 lessons, in theory of music, | 85. |
| One quarter use of instruments, one hour daily, | \$3. |
| One quarter use of instruments, two hours daily, | \$5. |

General Instructions in Music:

Thorough instruction in the rudiments of vocal music will be given to classes composed of any members of the Institution, who wish it, without extra charge.

MEDICAL DEPARTMENT.

SESSION OF 1874-'75.

The Annual Session of this school commences the first of October and continues twenty weeks. This Department commands all the means and advantages in use at the present day for giving a complete and thorough course of medical instruction. In accordance with the original intention of the trustees, this department of the University has been made *Free*. Students are only required to pay a matriculation and graduation fee.

The bui'dings with their grounds consist of about four acres adjoining the University Park. The main building is four stories in height, and is equal, if not superior, in its style of architecture and facilities for the accommodation of medical students, to any of the medical colleges of the country. The lecture rooms are conveniently arranged, and will accomodate three hundred students.

The apparatus and the material of the cabinets of the several chairs have been selected with great care. They are well arranged for an ample illustration of the several branches taught.

Clinical Instruction.

Arrangements have been made for the admission of the students of medicine, under proper restrictions, to the Freedmen's General Hospital and Asylum, situated within

the grounds of the Institution, for the purpose of studying disease at the bed-side. Surgical, medical, and obstetrical cases will be seen by the class, under the supervision of the professors, and operations will be performed in their presence in the amphitheatre. Clinical instructions occur twice a week.

Hospital Facilities and Resident Students.

The Hospital contains several hundred patients, and presents unusual facilities for the study of practical medicine and surgery. Resident students are selected every month from the graduating class to serve in the wards of the hospital. They will write prescriptions under the direction of the Professors, and keep histories of all the interesting cases and assist at clinics.

Female Students.

A number of female medical students have already availed themselves of the advantages and facilities offered them in the Medical Department of this University. To all who shall thereafter present themselves a cordial welcome is extended. Separate dissecting rooms and other conveniences have been arranged for their exclusive use.

The Orphans' Asylum

Affords ample opportunity for the study of diseases of children.

The Army Medical Museum

Of the United States in this city contains the most elaborate collection of surgical, pathological, anatomical, and microscopical specimens in the world. This museum is accessible to medical students, and furnishes them with facilities for medical and surgical instruction not to be found in any other city in this country. The Medical Library at the Office of the Surgeon General contains over 12,000 volumes, which is also accessible to students.

Requirements for Matriculation.

1. The applicant must furnish evidence of good moral character.

2. He must possess a thorough English education and a sufficient acquaintance with the Latin language, to understand and write prescriptions, and to understand medical terms in common use.

Requirements for Graduation.

1. The candidate must furnish evidence to the Dean of having studied medicine three years, under the supervision of a regular practitioner of medicine, during which time he must have attended two full courses of lectures at some regular medical college, the last of which must have been in this Institution.

2. He must have dissected at least two terms, and at-

tended the clinical lectures.

3. He must present to the Faculty an acceptable thesis, original and in his own handwriting, upon some medical subject.

4. He must be twenty one years of age, and pass a satis-

factory examination in all branches of the course.

Adeundum Degrees.

The Adeundum Degree of Doctor of Medicine may be conferred upon any regular graduate in good standing, who has been engaged in the legitimate practice of medicine for not less than five years, on payment of the graduation fees.

FEES FOR THE COURSE:

| Matriculation, | 310. |
|---|-------|
| Graduation, | 330. |
| Clinical instruction—free to medical students | |
| and graduates of the University; graduates | |
| and matriculants of other medical colleges, | \$10. |

EXPENSES:

| Board in University Boarding Hall, per month | , \$12. |
|--|-------------|
| Room in University Building, including fuel, | , |
| | 812 to \$15 |

TEXT-BOOKS AND WORKS OF REFERENCE.

Surgery: Druitt's Surgery; Gross' Principles and Practice of Surgery; Paget's Surgical Pathology; MacLeod's Surgical Diagnosis; Holmes' System of Surgery.

Obstetrics.—Cazeaux's or Bedford's Obstetrics; Thomas and Hewitt on Diseases Peculiar to Women; Atthill on Diseases of Women, and West or Tanner on Diseases of Children.

Anatomy.—Leidy's Elementary Treatise on Human Anatomy; Wilson's Anatomy, with Kolliker's Microscopical Anatomy; Sharpey and Quain's Anatomy; Gray's Anatomy; Agnew's Dissector and Hodge's Dissector.

Institutes of Medicine.—Marshall's, Carpenter's, Dalton's or Drapers' Physiology: Beal on the Microscope.

Materia Medica; Carson's Synopsis; Wood & Bache's Dispensatory; Headland upon the Action of Medicines.

Practice of Medicine; Walsh on the Diseases of the Heart and Lungs; Tanner's Practice of Medicine; Reynold's System of Medicine.

Chemistry.—Boscow's & Town's Chemistry—last edition; Bowman's Medical Chemistry; Taylor's Toxicology.

Botany. - Gray's school field book.

LAW DEPARTMENT.

ADMISSION.

While much preliminary mental discipline is indispensable to enable the student to master the principles of law, any person of suitable age and good moral character may be admitted to the classes and exercises of the Department, the graduation of each depending upon the regularity of his attendance, the diligence of his application, his proficiency in the studies pursued, and his success in passing the final examination, and in presenting and delivering a legal dissertation acceptable to the Faculty at the close of the course.

The advantages of the Department are open to all who are duly qualified. Before attending upon the lectures and other exercises, students must apply to the Secretary of the Board for tickets of admission, and must make a satisfactory arrangement with the Treasurer for the payment of all dues to the University.

nent of an dues to the University

DESIGN.

The design of this Department is to give a complete course of education to students desiring to enter upon the profession of the law; and, while it is not attempted to familiarize the student with all the details of local practice, the exercises of the Department are directed to a complete preparation of its graduates, by means of thorough instruction in legal and collateral branches of study, as well as by practice in the moot court, including the drawing of papers and pleadings and the arguments of causes, for successful effort at the bar.

COURSE OF STUDY.

The course of study embraces the subjects of international and constitutional law, the various branches of the common law, equity, and admiralty. The text books used will be mainly the following, viz:

First Year—Walker's Introduction to American Law; Blackstone's Commentaries; Kent's Commentaries and

Smith on Contracts.

Second Year—Greenleaf on Evidence; Hilliard on Torts; Washburn on Real Property; Williams on Real Property; Parsons on Bills and Notes; Stephen on Pleading; Adams on Equity and Bishop on Criminal Law.

RECITATIONS.

The students, being required to furnish their own text-books, study and make regular recitations from the authors indicated. The recitations and other exercises are held from 5 to 8 o'clock P. M., with special reference to the needs and opportunities of those who are engaged during the business hours of the day in clerical and other pursuits.

LECTURES.

During each term special courses of lectures on the different branches of the law will be delivered, and the lecturers and subjects will be announced from time to time.

FORENSIC EXERCISES.

Forensic exercises are held under the superintendance of the Dean of the Department, on one evening of each week, for the benefit of members of the Junior Class. These exercises consist of orations, both extemporaneous and written, debates and essays upon legal topics; and, in connection therewith, special attention is given to instruction in composition, elocution, and the essentials of correct and effective speaking.

MOOT COURTS.

With a view to thorough preparation for professional practice, moot courts are held each week, at which cases previously assigned are conducted and argued by members of the Senior Class. The students, acting as counsel, are required to draw all papers and pleadings, incident to the institution and conduct of the case, and to deliver a carefully prepared argument.

LIBRARY.

The Library of the Department consists of elementary and other works of the law for the use of all students, but more especially for the use of members of the Senior Class in practice in the moot courts.

LOCATION.

The exercises of the Department are held in the Howard University building, at the head of Seventh street, where large and convenient rooms have been specially fitted up for recitations, lectures, and moot courts.

SPECIAL FACILITIES.

Washington City furnishes for the study of the law in its science and practice the amplest facilities. It is here that Congress holds its sessions, the Supreme Court of the United States and other courts of a national and local character administer justice; and it is here that the young men of the nation may witness the efforts of eminent lawyers and statesmen, in the courts and halls of legislation; and here, too, may be found the finest legal libraries of the country.

GRADUATION AND DEGREES.

All students who pursue the course of study prescribed in this Department and comply with the regulations of the University otherwise, upon passing a satisfactory examination, will receive the degree of Bachelor of Laws and, upon motion, may be admitted to the Bar of the Supreme Court of the District of Columbia.

No degree can be conferred, however, until all books are returned to the Library and all dues to the University discharged.

TUITION.

The charge per year, if paid in advance, is \$40; when paid monthly, \$50.

THEOLOGICAL DEPARTMENT.

ADMISSION.

This Department is open to students of every Christian denomination. Every applicant for admission must present testimonials of Christian character, of possessing good natural talents, and evidence of having received a good education in the common English branches.

COURSE OF INSTRUCTION.

Not less than three years will be required for a complete course; and the Holy Scriptures will be made the principal study.

Where there is extraordinary promise of usefulness, and the circumstances demand it, a shorter course will be pro-

vided.

Theological students will, also, be permitted to attend, free of expense, the lectures in the Collegiate Department on natural philosophy, chemistry and geology, and will have free access to the Library and Reading-room and to the scientific collections of the University.

This Department has peculiar advantages for ministers of the gospel, in Washington and vicinity, who wish instruction in Theology while engaged in ministerial work.

EXPENSES.

No charges will be made for instruction, nor for rent of rooms; but each student will pay \$5 per year for the care of rooms and other incidental expenses. Good board can

be had for \$3 per week.

There are no scholarships or beneficiary funds for this Department, but it is believed that with the opportunities for self-support which Washington affords, and with the aid of benevolent persons, churches, Sunday schools, etc., which the Faculty will seek, any young man of promise can here enter upon and complete a course of theological studies.

COURSE OF STUDY.

JUNIOR YEAR.

Biblical Introduction; Geography and Antiquities; Greek Testament—Gospels; Hebrew—Grammar and Pentetarch; Natural Theology; Biblical Theology of the Old Testament; Sacred History; Evidences of Christianity; Lectures on English Language; Rhetorical Exercises; English Bible.

MIDDLE YEAR.

Interpretation; Greek Testament, Acts, and Epistles; Hebrew Bible—Psalms and Prophets; Biblical Theology of the New Testament; Church History to Reformation; Homiletics and Pastoral Theology; Mental and Moral Science; Rhetorical Exercises; English Bible.

SENIOR YEAR.

Interpretation—Systematic Theology; Homiletics—Exercises in Construction of Plans and in Preaching Sermons; Church History, from the Reformation; History of Christian Doctrine; Ecclesiastical Polity of New Testament; Lectures on Missions and English Bible.

SPECIAL STATEMENT

OF THE

ACADEMICAL DEPARTMENT.

RECITATIONS AND DEPORTMENT.

A permanent record is kept of the recitations, general conduct, attainments, and delinquencies of each studen tt A copy of this record, when requested, is furnished o

parents and guardians.

RELIGIOUS EXERCISES.

All students are required to attend public worship at least once on the Sabbath; the regular Bible lessons weekly; and the daily religious exercises in the Chapel in

the morning.

There are two weekly prayer-meetings at the University, one on Wednesday evening, conducted by the officers of the Institution; the other on Saturday evening, conducted by students. There is also a preaching service every Sabbath evening, under the general conduct of the Theological Department.

LITERARY SOCIETIES.

Literary Societies are formed in each of the Departments, fostered and encouraged by the several Faculties for improvement in elecution, extemporaneous speaking, written discussions, and general culture. These Societies meet weekly with occasional public meetings.

PHYSICAL SCIENCES.

It is the design of the University to give suitable prominence to the several branches of physical science in all the Academical Departments. Full courses of practical lectures will be given, illustrated by the latest approved apparatus.

EXAMINATIONS.

There will be examinations in all the Departments at the close of each term, oral, or written, at the option of each Faculty, provided however, that at least one examination shall be written. The examination at the close of the year will be before a committee appointed by the Faculty. At all these examinations it is expected that members of the Board of Trustees are, ex-officio, an examining committee.

LIBRARIES AND READING ROOM.

The Institution has made a very creditable beginning in the direction of public and special libraries and reading rooms, with very spacious and pleasant accommodations. The general Library contains about 7,500 volumes, many of them choice and select, others miscellaneous. The Professional Departments have each a seperate and select Library.

All students of the University are allowed free access to the General Library and Reading Room, subject to regula-

tions.

CABINETS, MUSEUM, AND PICTURE GALLERY.

The Mineral Cabinet is furnished with proper cases, in which the geological and mineralogical specimens have been carefully arranged. Valuable additions have been made recently; and the collection now contains numerous fossils, minerals and rocks, including fine specimens of American and foreign marbles, building materials, marine productions, ores in duplicate and triplicate of the various precious metals, and Indian relics from Arizona. The entire collection contains over 5,000 specimens.

The Museum, in another room, contains various articles illustrative of foreign and American history. Of the latter class are many curious objects relating to the recent civil war. One case in this room is devoted to coins, medals, and curious notes. The collection of coins is quite extensive. Large and valuable additions have been made to

the museum during the two last years.

The Picture Gallery has been largely increased, and contains portraits of distinguished women, authors, scientific men, generals, statesmen, and philanthropists; valuable views of the late war and steel plate engravings of various subjects; also twenty-nine photographic views of classic ruins in Rome.

The Trustees are desirous of enlarging the collections in these departments, and solicit contributions from all friends of the institution. Such gifts will always be acknowledged by the President and Librarian over their own signatures.

MILITARY DEPARTMENT.

By a recent vote of the Trustees this department will cease at the close of the present year. The hope is entertained that ere long accommodations and instruction shall

be furnished for a gymnasium, open equally to gentlemen and ladies, affording opportunity for exercise, recreation, and the best physical culture.

AID TO INDIGENT STUDENTS.

This Institution has probably given more, directly and indirectly, in aid to this class of students than any similar institution in the land. These benefactions have been derived from the funds of the institution specially appropriated, in procuring situations to earn money by labor, or in clerkships, or from the freewill offerings of the friends of the poor. There is a standing committee of the trustees who have this matter in hand, and who are expected to make in the future systematic provisions for this class of students, by permanent, or temporary scholarships.

ADMISSION OF LADIES.

Ladies are admitted to either branch of the institution, academic, or professional. They occupy a separate hall with ample accommodations, under the immediate supervision of a matron, reciting without distinction of sex, in their appropriate classes, with equal opportunity to enjoy all the advantages of the institution, and to aspire to all its honors.

UNIVERSITY SITE AND BUILDINGS.

The Institution occupies a commanding and beautiful site just outside of the city proper, on the North, at the head of Seventh street. Its University edifice is four stories in height, containing recitation and lecture rooms, chapel, library, philosophical rooms, museum, and offices. Minor hall for ladies will accommodate one hundred students, with connected rooms for matron and teachers. The large basement of this building is arranged and furnished for the University boarding hall. Clark Hall for young men will accommodate two hundred students; in its basement is a large room adapted to military drills and gymnastic exercises.

The buildings for the Medical Hospital, with their grounds adjoin the University Park. The general Hospi-

tal connected with this Department will accommodate over four hundred patients.

EXPENSES.

The rooms in Miner Hall, which is set apart for young ladies, are arranged in suites of two, and two closets, each suite to be occupied by two persons. They are uniformly furnished with stove, chairs, bedsteads, table, book-shelves and wash-stands. Each student will furnish bedding.

The rooms in Clark Hall, which is occupied by young men, are furnished as those in Miner Hall, but are warmed

by steam.

No room will be considered engaged beyond the second

day of the term unless the rent is paid.

Board in the University Hall is \$12 per month, paid at the end of each month. If paid in advance $\$\frac{1}{3}$ per cent. discount is made.

Washing is \$2 per month for eight pieces.

Tuition is \$3 per term.

Room rent, fuel, and gas are from \$12 to \$15 per term. The treasurer's bills, including tuition, room rent, gas, and fuel, must be paid at the beginning of each term.

It is estimated that from \$175 to \$200 will meet all the above mentioned bills for the entire academic year of thirty-seven weeks.

Other expenses will depend upon the habits and economy of the student. The real advantages gained in study and right culture will be in the inverse ratio of all moneys needlessly spent.

CALENDAR 1874-'75.

| 1 | 0 | H | 4 | |
|-----|---|---|---|--|
| - 1 | ð | 1 | 4 | |

Sept. 16. Autumnal term begins in the Academical, Law, and Theological Departments—Wednesday.

Oct. 1. Medical Department begins—Thursday.

Dec. 21-23. Examination in Academical Departments—Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday.

Dec. 23. Autumnal term ends—Wednesday.

Winter Vacation .- Twelve Days.

1875.

Jan. 5. Winter term begins—Tuesday.

Feb. 24. Anniversary of the Law Department—Wednesday.

Feb. 26. Anniversary of the Medical Department—Friday.

March 23-25. Examination in the Academical Department—Tues-

day, Wednesday, and Thursday.

March 25. Winter term ends—Thursday.

Spring Vacation-Five Days,

March 30. Spring term begins—Tuesday.

June 14-16. Examination in the Academical Departments—Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday.

June 14. Anniversary of the Normal Department-Monday.

June 15. Anniversary of the Preparatory Department—Tuesday.

June 16. Anniversary of the Theological Department—Wednesday.

June 17. Anniversary of the Collegiate Department—Thursday.

June 17. Summer term ends—Thursday.

Summer Vacation-Thirteen Weeks.

Sept. 15. Autumnal term begins in all Departments, except the Medical—Wednesday.

Oct. 1. Medical Department begins-Friday.